
564 Texas Bar Journal • July 2016 texasbar.com

ing the compulsory discipline petition
against Houston attorney Gwendolyn F.
Climmons [#04390000], 56. On or
about June 13, 2014, Climmons was con-
victed of one count of conspiracy to com-
mit health care fraud and four counts of
health care fraud, aiding and abetting,
intentional crimes as defined in the Texas
Rules of Disciplinary Procedure, was sen-
tenced to incarceration for 97 months
followed by supervised release for three
years, and was ordered to pay an assess-
ment of $500 and restitution in the
amount of $972,132.22 in United States of
America v. Gwendolyn Climmons-Johnson,
in the U.S. District Court for the South-
ern District of Texas holding session in
Houston. She appealed the criminal con-
viction. On May 4, 2015,  BODA sus-
pended Climmons from the practice of
law during the appeal of her criminal
conviction. On January 14, 2016, a man-
date was issued by the U.S. Court of
Appeals for the 5th Circuit in Cause No.
14-20392, United States of America,
Plaintiff-Appellee v. Gwendolyn Climmons-
Johnson, Defendant-Appellant, which
affirmed the judgment issued by the dis-
trict court. By Misc. Order 16-9041, signed
April 5, 2016, the Supreme Court of Texas
accepted Climmons’s resignation in lieu of
discipline. BODA Cause No. 55907.

On April 11, 2016, the Board of Dis-
ciplinary Appeals signed an agreed
judgment of indefinite disability sus-
pension against Dallas attorney Ernesto
Maldonado [#12855100], 81, in accor-
dance with Part XII of the Texas Rules
of Disciplinary Procedure and section
8 of the Internal Procedural Rules of
the Board of Disciplinary Appeals.
BODA Cause No. 57430.

On May 2, 2016, the Board of Disci-
plinary Appeals affirmed the judgment
of partially probated suspension against
Dallas attorney John Hatchett Carney
[#03832200], 61, signed May 21,
2015, by the evidentiary panel of the
District 6-1 Grievance Committee in
Case No. D0091144006 for violations

of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Pro-
fessional Conduct 1.14(a) and 1.14(c)
(commingling trust account funds).
BODA Cause No. 56562. 

Carney appealed BODA’s decision to
the Texas Supreme Court on May 17,
2016, Case No. 16-0366.

On May 2, 2016, the Board of Disci-
plinary Appeals affirmed the judgment
of disbarment against Houston attorney
Cyril Okey Chukwurah [#24048394],
60, signed August 21, 2015, by the evi-
dentiary panel of the District 4-6 Griev-
ance Committee in Case No. 201402059,
for violations of the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct 1.14(b)
(failure to deliver trust account funds to a
client or third person) and 8.04 (a)(7)
(violation of a disciplinary order). BODA
Cause No. 56620. 

Chukwurah appealed BODA’s decision
to the Texas Supreme Court on May 16,
2016, Case No. 16-0357.

On May 2, 2016, the Board of Disci-
plinary Appeals signed a final judgment
of disbarment against Austin attorney
Marc G. Rosenthal [#17281450], 54.
On or about February 13, 2014, Rosen-
thal was convicted in United States of
America v. Marc Garrett Rosenthal, Case
No. 1:11CR00743-001, U.S. District
Court for the Southern District of Texas
holding session in Brownsville, of one
count of participating in conduct and
affairs of a criminal enterprise in violation
of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(d), four counts of
mail fraud and aiding and abetting in vio-
lation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1341 and 1342,
one count of tampering with a witness
and aiding and abetting in violation of 18
U.S.C. §§ 1512(b)(1) and 2, one count
of tampering with official proceeding by
false affidavit in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§
1512(c)(2) and 2, one count of tamper-
ing with official proceeding by perjured
testimony in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§
1512(c)(2) and 2, one count of extortion
under color of official right and aiding
and abetting in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§
1951 and 2, and one count of honest

BODA
On April 4, 2016, the Board of Disci-

plinary Appeals signed an order dismiss-
ing the compulsory discipline petition
filed against Austin attorney Anirudh
D. Sarwal [#24002895], 43. Sarwal pled
guilty to one count of conspiracy to com-
mit bank fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§
1349 and 1344 and on April 3, 2015, was
sentenced to 57 months imprisonment and
ordered to pay $13,461,604.31 in restitu-
tion in the case styled United States of
America v. Anirudh Sarwal, Case No. 3:12-
CR-193-M (01), U.S. District Court for
the Northern District of Texas, Dallas Divi-
sion. By Misc. Order 16-9029, signed
March 22, 2016, the Supreme Court of
Texas accepted Sarwal’s resignation in lieu
of discipline. BODA Cause No. 57003.

On April 4, 2016, the Board of Disci-
plinary Appeals signed an order dismiss-
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services mail fraud and aiding and abet-
ting in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1341,
1346, and 2—intentional crimes as de-
fined in the Texas Rules of Disciplinary
Procedure. Rosenthal was sentenced to
240 months incarceration on each count,
to run concurrently. Rosenthal appealed
his criminal conviction, and on April 11,
2014, BODA signed an agreed order of
interlocutory suspension, suspending
Rosenthal during the pendency of the
appeal of his criminal conviction. On
November 5, 2015, the U.S. Court of
Appeals for the 5th Circuit issued its
mandate affirming Rosenthal’s convic-
tion. BODA Cause No. 53873.

On May 2, 2016, the Board of Disci-
plinary Appeals signed an interlocutory
order of suspension against Missouri City
attorney Ronald Eugene Reynolds
[#24025610], 42. On or about November
24, 2015, Reynolds was convicted in The
State of Texas v. Ronald Eugene Reynolds—
Case Nos. 15-307888, 15-307889, 15-
307890, 15-307891, and 15-307892, in
County Court at Law No. 4 in Mont-
gomery County—of barratry and barratry
ill obtain employment, intentional crimes
as defined in the Texas Rules of Disciplin-
ary Procedure, was sentenced to 365 days
of incarceration, and was ordered to pay a
fine and court costs. Reynolds has
appealed his criminal convictions. BODA
retains jurisdiction to enter a final judg-
ment when the criminal appeals are final.
BODA Cause No. 57004.

On May 2, 2016, the Board of Disci-
plinary Appeals signed an interlocutory
order of suspension against Houston attor-
ney L. Mickelé Daniels [#05374900],
52. On or about January 21, 2015,
Daniels pled nolo contendere in The
State of Texas v. Daniels, Leiroi Mickele,
Case No. 139959801010 in the 230th
District Court of Harris County, to Mis-
application/Fiduciary/Finan 20K-100K,
a third-degree felony and intentional
crime as defined in the Texas Rules of
Disciplinary Procedure, and was placed
on community supervision for five years
and ordered to pay court costs. Daniels
has appealed his criminal conviction.
BODA retains jurisdiction to enter a
final judgment when the criminal

of the District 3 Grievance Committee
found that in two separate immigration
representations, Kowis neglected the legal
matters entrusted to him; failed to promptly
comply with reasonable requests for infor-
mation from his clients; failed to refund
unearned fees; and engaged in conduct
involving dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or
misrepresentation. In a third count, the
evidentiary panel found that in a per-
sonal injury representation, Kowis neg-
lected the legal matter entrusted to him;
failed to have a written contingent-fee
agreement; failed to promptly comply
with reasonable requests for information
from his client; knowingly brought a friv-
olous proceeding; made a false statement
of material fact or law to a tribunal; and
engaged in conduct involving dishonesty,
fraud, deceit, or misrepresentation. In all
three counts, Kowis failed to respond to
the grievance filed against him. 

Kowis violated Rules 1.01(b)(1), 1.03(a),
1.03(b), 1.04(d), 1.15(d), 3.01, 3.03(a)(1),
and 3.03(a)(3). He was ordered to pay
$29,789.03 in restitution and $2,155 in

appeal is final. BODA Cause No.
57321.

On May 2, 2016, the Board of Disci-
plinary Appeals signed a default judg-
ment of disbarment against Mesa,
Arizona, attorney Gary L. Lassen
[#11969500], 68. Lassen was disbarred
in a matter styled In the Matter of a Sus-
pended Member of the State Bar of Ari-
zona, Gary L. Lassen, Bar No. 005259,
Respondent,  PDJ-2014-9026, State Bar
Nos. 11-3805, 13-0301, 13-1205, 13-
2214, and 13-3323. In accordance with
the Texas Rules of Disciplinary Proce-
dure, Lassen is disbarred in Texas.
BODA Cause No. 57323. 

DISBARMENTS
On April 8, 2016, Adam Thomas

Froeschl [#24076390], 30, of San An-
tonio, was disbarred. The District 10
Grievance Committee found that the
respondent neglected a client matter,
failed to communicate with a client,
failed to refund unearned fees, and failed
to return the client file.

Froeschl violated Rules 1.01(b)(1),
1.03(a), and 1.15(d). He was ordered to
pay $3,500 in restitution and $1,620 in
attorneys’ fees and direct expenses.

On April 13, 2016, Arthur Grimaldo
Jr. [#24002186], 48, of Corinth, was dis-
barred. An evidentiary panel of the Dis-
trict 14 Grievance Committee found that
Grimaldo collected investor funds and
used the money for his benefit; failed to
promptly deliver the funds to his client
upon request; failed to keep the funds
separate from his own funds; made a
false statement of material fact in con-
nection with a disciplinary matter;
engaged in conduct involving dishon-
esty, fraud, deceit, or misrepresentation;
and committed egregious fraud through-
out the representation of his client.

Grimaldo violated Rules 1.03(a),
1.14(a), 1.14(b), 1.14(c), 8.01(a), and
8.04(a)(3). He was ordered to pay
$199,000 in restitution and $3,368.50
in attorneys’ fees and direct expenses.

On February 19, 2016, Kelly Michael
Kowis [#90001781], 48, of The Wood-
lands, was disbarred. An evidentiary panel
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District 10 Grievance Committee found
that Boone-Delgado failed to hold client
funds in a trust account separate from
her own property, failed to supervise her
nonlawyer staff, shared fees with a non-
lawyer, and failed to respond to the
grievance in a timely fashion.

Boone-Delgado violated Rules 1.14(a),
5.03(a), 5.03(b), 5.04(a), 8.01(b), and
8.04(a)(8). She was ordered to pay $800
in attorneys’ fees and direct expenses.

On May 9, 2016, Jerry Cole Brooks
[#24055217], 38, of Houston, agreed to
a three-year partially probated suspen-
sion effective June 1, 2016, with the
first 18 months actively suspended and
the remainder probated. An evidentiary
panel of the District 4 Grievance Com-
mittee found that Brooks neglected the
legal matters entrusted to him; failed
to keep his clients reasonably informed
about the status of their legal matters
and to promptly comply with reasonable
requests for information; failed to explain
a legal matter to the extent reasonably
necessary to permit his client to make
an informed decision regarding his rep-
resentation; and, upon termination of
representation, failed to refund advance
payments of fees that had not been
earned. Brooks also engaged in conduct
involving dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or
misrepresentation; failed to respond to
grievances; failed to comply with Texas
Rule of Disciplinary Procedure 13.01
relating to notification of an attorney’s
cessation of practice; and engaged in the
practice of law when his right to prac-
tice had been administratively suspended.

Brooks violated Rules 1.01(b)(1),
1.03(a), 1.03(b), 1.15(d), 8.04(a)(3),
8.04(a)(8), 8.04(a)(10), and 8.04(a)(11).
He was ordered to pay $2,212 in resti-
tution, $1,500 in attorneys’ fees, and
$200 in direct expenses.

On May 23, 2016, Mark Edwin
Brunner [#24006917], 46, of Round Rock,
accepted a one-year probated suspension
effective June 1, 2016. An evidentiary
panel of the District 8 Grievance Com-
mittee found that Brunner was the first
assistant district attorney in Williamson
County representing the state of Texas
in a criminal case involving four counts

of representation, failed to return unearned
fees; failed to supervise a nonlawyer
assistant to ensure that person’s conduct
was compatible with professional obli-
gations of a lawyer; shared fees with a
nonlawyer; assisted a nonlawyer in the
unauthorized practice of law; committed
a serious crime; engaged in conduct
involving dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or
misrepresentation; and failed to respond
to grievances. 

Brooks allegedly violated Rules
1.01(b)(1), 1.01(b)(2), 1.02(a)(1), 1.03(a),
1.03(b), 1.14(a), 1.14(b), 1.15(d), 5.03(a),
5.03(b)(1), 5.03(b)(2)(i), 5.03(b)(2)(ii),
5.04(b), 5.05(b), 8.04(a)(2), 8.04(a)(3),
and 8.04(a)(8).

SUSPENSIONS
On May 13, 2016, Samuel C. Beale

[#01952380], 60, of Houston, agreed to a
one-year probated suspension effective
June 1, 2016. An evidentiary panel of the
District 4 Grievance Committee found
that Beale frequently failed to carry out
completely the obligations that he owed
to his client and failed to keep his client
reasonably informed about the status of
his legal matter and to promptly comply
with reasonable requests for information.

Beale violated Rules 1.01(b)(2) and
1.03(a). He was ordered to pay $2,500 in
restitution and $500 in attorneys’ fees.

On May 3, 2016, Jose Angel Becerra
[#24026790], 41, of Laredo, accepted a
one-year active suspension effective May
1, 2016. The District 12 Grievance Com-
mittee found that Becerra failed to return
a client file, failed to provide a full
accounting of client funds, failed to hold
client funds separate from his own prop-
erty, failed to deliver promptly client
funds that the clients were entitled to
receive, failed to return unearned fees,
and failed to respond to three grievances
in a timely fashion. 

Becerra violated Rules 1.14(a), 1.14(b),
1.15(d), and 8.04(a)(8). He was ordered
to pay $5,164.82 in attorneys’ fees and
direct expenses.

On May 16, 2016, Cheryl Boone-
Delgado [#02627500], 66, of San An-
tonio, accepted a 12-month active
suspension effective May 16, 2016. The

attorneys’ fees and direct expenses.
Kowis has not filed an appeal. 

RESIGNATIONS
On May 3, 2016, the Supreme Court

of Texas accepted the resignation in
lieu of discipline of Douglas Joe Brooks
[#03064000], 72, of Lewisville. At the
time of Brooks’s resignation, there were
15 pending matters against him alleging
that he neglected legal matters; failed
to follow a client’s instructions regard-
ing settlement; failed to keep clients
reasonably informed about the status of
their legal matters; failed to promptly
comply with reasonable requests for
information from clients about their
legal matters; failed to explain matters
to the extent reasonably necessary to
permit clients to make informed decisions
regarding the representation; failed to
hold funds belonging to clients separate
from his own property; failed to promptly
deliver to clients funds that clients were
entitled to receive; upon termination

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS
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of aggravated bank robbery. Before the
acceptance of a plea agreement, when
the court specifically asked Brunner in
open court whether he had consulted
with the victims on the plea, he mis-
represented that he had spoken with
the listed victims when he had not done
so. Brunner made no efforts to correct
this misrepresentation. 

Brunner violated Rule 3.03(a)(1).
He was ordered to pay $1,169.05 in
attorneys’ fees and direct expenses and
to complete six additional hours of
CLE in the area of ethics. 

On April 1, 2016, Gary A. Hinch-
man [#09684350], 61, of The Wood-
lands, received an 18-month partially
probated suspension effective June 1,
2016, with the first month actively sus-
pended and the remainder probated. An
evidentiary panel of the District 4 Griev-
ance Committee found that Hinchman
neglected his client’s legal matter and fre-
quently failed to carry out the obligations
he owed to his client. Hinchman further
failed to keep his client reasonably
informed about the status of her case.

Hinchman violated Rule 1.01(b)(1),
1.01(b)(2), and 1.03(a). He was ordered
to pay $675 in restitution and $1,345 in
attorneys’ fees and direct expenses.

On April 29, 2016, Scott K. Huber
[#24013905], 49, of Dallas, received a 30-
month active suspension effective April
21, 2016. An evidentiary panel of the Dis-
trict 6 Grievance Committee found that
in September 2009, the complainant
hired Huber for representation in a con-
tractual matter. In representing the com-
plainant, Huber neglected the legal
matter entrusted to him, failed to keep the
complainant reasonably informed about
the status of his legal matter, and failed to
promptly comply with reasonable requests
for information from the complainant
about the matter. Huber failed to timely
furnish to the Office of the Chief Discipli-
nary Counsel a response or other informa-
tion as required by the Texas Rules of
Disciplinary Procedure and did not in
good faith timely assert a privilege or
other legal ground for his failure to do so. 

Huber violated Rules 1.01(b)(1),
1.03(a), and 8.04(a)(8). He was ordered

each case. He was ordered to pay $500
in attorneys’ fees and direct expenses,
to complete three additional hours of
CLE in the area of client relations, and
further agreed not to accept female
client court appointments during the
term of his probation. 

On May 6, 2016, David W. Knight
[#11597325], 61, of Wichita Falls, re-
ceived a two-year partially probated
suspension effective June 1, 2016, with
the first year actively suspended and
the remainder probated. An eviden-
tiary panel of the District 14 Griev-
ance Committee found that Knight
failed to refund an unearned portion of
his client’s fee and failed to timely fur-
nish to the Office of the Chief Disci-
plinary Counsel a response or other
information as required by the Texas
Rules of Disciplinary Procedure and
did not in good faith timely assert a
privilege or other legal ground for his
failure to do so.

Knight violated Rules 1.15(d) and

to pay $3,025 in attorneys’ fees and
$1,052.87 in direct expenses.

Huber did not file an appeal.

On May 20, 2016, Howard S. Jenkins
Jr. [#10619550], 56, of Austin, accepted
an 18-month partially probated suspen-
sion effective June 15, 2016, with the
first three months actively suspended
and the remainder probated. An eviden-
tiary panel of the District 9 Grievance
Committee found that Jenkins was
court-appointed to represent a female
client in a DWI criminal case. During
the representation, he asked his client a
series of inappropriate questions of a sex-
ual nature, some of which were asked
under the pretext that Jenkins was con-
ducting a “women’s study.” In another
matter, Jenkins was court-appointed to
represent a female client in a criminal
case. During that representation, Jenkins
asked his client inappropriate questions of
a sexual nature and made inappropriate
sexual statements to her.

Jenkins violated Rule 1.06(b)(2) in

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS
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cedure and did not in good faith timely
assert a privilege or other legal ground
for his failure to do so. 

Price violated Rules 1.01(b)(1), 1.03(a),
1.15(d), and 8.04(a)(8). He was ordered
to complete three hours of CLE in ethics,
in addition to the minimum CLE com-
pliance requirements. He was also ordered
to pay $4,400 in restitution and $3,032.75
in attorneys’ fees and direct expenses.

On May 26, 2016, Ross A.
Rodriguez [#24025756], 52, of San
Antonio, agreed to a 30-month partially
probated suspension effective October 1,
2016, with the first three months ac-
tively served and the remainder pro-
bated. The District 10 Grievance
Committee found that Rodriguez failed
to hold client funds separate from his
own property; failed to promptly deliver
client funds that the clients were en-
titled to receive; failed to withdraw from
representation when discharged; and,
upon termination, failed to surrender
client files and return unearned fees.

Rodriguez violated Rules 1.14(a), 1.14(b),
1.15(a)(3), and 1.15(d). He was ordered
to pay $2,300 in restitution and $1,000
in attorneys’ fees and direct expenses.

On April 27, 2016, Daniel Armando
Sandoval [#24075521], 35, of San An-
tonio, accepted a 15-month fully probated
suspension effective May 1, 2016. The
District 10 Grievance Committee found
that Sandoval neglected a client matter,
failed to promptly comply with reason-
able requests for information, and failed
to refund unearned fees. 

Sandoval violated Rules 1.01(b)(1),
1.03(a), and 1.15(d). He was ordered
to pay $3,500 in restitution and $800
in attorneys’ fees.

On May 6, 2016, Paul Andrew Smith
[#24010408], 46, of Westlake Hills,
accepted an 18-month probated suspen-
sion effective May 1, 2016. An eviden-
tiary panel of the District 9 Grievance
Committee found that Smith was hired in
August 2014 to represent the com-
plainant in a family law matter. In an
email dated February 23, 2015, Smith
revealed confidential information to a
third party without obtaining the com-

conduct by a nonlawyer that would be in
violation of the rules if engaged in by a
lawyer.

Nguyen violated Rule 5.03(b)(1). He was
ordered to pay $1,000 in attorneys’ fees.

On May 24, 2016, Harold Brandon
Price [#24049263], 44, of Dallas, received
a two-year partially probated suspension
with the first year actively suspended
and the remainder probated. An eviden-
tiary panel of the District 6 Grievance
Committee found that Price neglected
a legal matter entrusted to him, failed
to keep his client reasonably informed
about the status of his case, and failed
to promptly comply with reasonable
requests for information from his client.
Upon termination of representation,
Price did not refund advance payments
of fees that had not been earned. Price
also failed to timely furnish to the Office
of the Chief Disciplinary Counsel a
response or other information as required
by the Texas Rules of Disciplinary Pro-

8.04(a)(8). He was ordered to pay
$2,062.50 in restitution and $1,842
in attorneys’ fees and direct expenses. 

On May 6, 2016, David W. Knight
[#11597325], 61, of Wichita Falls, re-
ceived a two-year partially probated
suspension effective June 1, 2016, with
the first year actively suspended and
the remainder probated. An evidentiary
panel of the District 14 Grievance Com-
mittee found that Knight failed to safe-
guard the advance fee that his client
paid him by keeping it in a separate
trust or escrow account. 

Knight violated Rule 1.14(a). He was
ordered to pay $2,487 in attorneys’ fees
and direct expenses. 

On April 20, 2016, Nhan Huynh
Nguyen [#24041589], 42, of Houston,
accepted a four-month fully probated sus-
pension effective May 1, 2016. An evi-
dentiary panel of the District 4 Grievance
Committee found that Nguyen permitted
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plainant’s consent. On April 8, 2015, the
complainant requested that Smith pro-
vide her with a copy of Smith’s motion to
withdraw and return her file. Thereafter,
Smith failed to withdraw and failed to
return the client file to the complainant.

Smith violated Rules 1.05(b)(1)(i),
1.15(a)(3), 1.15(d), and 8.04(a)(1). He
was ordered to pay $1,124.50 in attor-
neys’ fees and direct expenses.

On March 30, 2016, Jesus E. Tirrez
[#20076750], 54, of Austin, received a
two-year partially probated suspension
effective April 18, 2016, with the first
three months actively served and the
remainder probated. The 419th District
Court of Travis County found that Tirrez
violated Rules 5.03(b)(1) [a lawyer shall
be subject to discipline for the conduct of
a person that would be a violation of these
rules if engaged in by the lawyer if the
lawyer orders, encourages, or permits the
conduct involved]; 7.03(a) [a lawyer shall
not by in-person contact seek professional
employment concerning a matter arising
out of a particular occurrence or event
from a prospective client or nonclient
who has not sought the lawyer’s advice
regarding employment or with whom the
lawyer has no family or past or present
attorney-client relationship when a signif-
icant motive for doing so is the lawyer’s
pecuniary gain]; and 8.04(a)(1) [a lawyer
shall not violate these rules, knowingly
assist or induce another to do so, or do so
through the acts of another]. 

Tirrez was ordered to pay $18,743.17 in
attorneys’ fees and direct expenses.

Tirrez has filed a notice of appeal. 

PUBLIC REPRIMANDS
On April 26, 2016, Brian D. Bethune

[#02268315], 62, of Plano, agreed to a
public reprimand. The 366th District
Court of Collin County found that the
parties agreed that Bethune committed
professional misconduct by violating Rule
3.04(d) [a lawyer shall not knowingly dis-
obey, or advise the client to disobey, an
obligation under the standing rules of or a
ruling by a tribunal except for an open
refusal based either on an assertion that
no valid obligation exists or on the
client’s willingness to accept any sanc-
tions arising from such disobedience].

Bethune was ordered to pay $2,000 in
attorneys’ fees and direct expenses.

On April 19, 2016, Monique Jurae
Bracey [#24058788], 33, of Plano, re-
ceived a public reprimand. The District 1
Grievance Committee found that in rep-
resenting the complainant in a criminal
matter, Bracey neglected the legal matter
entrusted to her; failed to keep the com-
plainant reasonably informed about the
status of his matter; and failed to promptly
comply with reasonable requests for infor-
mation from the complainant about his
criminal matter. Bracey failed to timely
furnish to the Office of the Chief Discipli-
nary Counsel a response or other informa-
tion as required by the Texas Rules of
Disciplinary Procedure and did not in
good faith timely assert a privilege or other
legal ground for her failure to do so.

Bracey violated Rules 1.01(b)(1),
1.03(a), and 8.04(a)(8). She was ordered
to pay $2,100 in restitution and $1,262.50
in attorneys’ fees and direct expenses.

On April 30, 2016, Jason Edward
Choe [#24009954], 45, of Dallas, agreed
to a judgment of public reprimand. An
evidentiary panel of the District 6
Grievance Committee found that Choe
failed to keep the complainant reason-
ably informed about the status of her
case and promptly comply with her rea-
sonable requests for information. Choe
failed to timely furnish to the Office of
the Chief Disciplinary Counsel a
response or other information as
required by the Texas Rules of Discipli-
nary Procedure and did not in good faith
timely assert a privilege or other legal
ground for his failure to do so.  

Choe violated Rules 1.03(a) and
8.04(a)(8). He was ordered to pay  $1,000
in attorneys’ fees and direct expenses. 

On April 28, 2016, Gary Churak
[#04245500], 58, of San Antonio,
accepted a judgment of public repri-
mand. The District 10 Grievance
Committee found that Churak failed
to respond promptly to a client’s rea-
sonable requests for information.

Churak violated Rule 1.03(a). He
was ordered to pay $800 in attorneys’
fees and direct expenses. TBJ

512.480.9074 / 1.800.252.9332
INFO@TLIE.ORG / WWW.TLIE.ORG

TLIEmployees

Because of our remarkable 
staff, Texas Lawyers’ 
Insurance Exchange has 
been voted best professional 
liability insurance company 
in Texas four years in a row 
by Texas Lawyer magazine. 
Those same noteworthy 
employees and over 36 years 
in the business are why TLIE 
is also a Preferred Provider 
of the State Bar of Texas. 
Not to mention, we have 
returned over $41,550,000 
to our policyholders. See 
why our employees make the 
difference.

@TLIE_ facebook.com/TLIE01

Leigh Nauman,  
Underwriter

TLIE eesymplo

  

ees

          

emarkBecause of our r
wyas Laxe, Tstaff

e has change ExancInsur
sional esofed best protbeen v

ompane cancy insurliabilit
s in a rearour yas fxein T

azine. er magwyas Laxey TTeb
orwehose same notT

  

able emark
s’ erwy

e has 
sional 

y ompan
w os in a r

azine. 
y thor

  

er 36 yvees and oyemplo
y TLIE e whs arin the busines

vider ored Perrefris also a P
eTof Bar e Statthe of 

e hao mention, wNot t
,1,550er $4veturned or

s. See o our policyholdert
e the ees makyy our emplowh

e.encerdiff

  

s earer 36 y
y TLIE 

vider 
as. xe

e ve ha
000 ,

s. See 
e the 

  

4 790.48012.5 / 9252.. 1.800
G ORO@TLIE.INF / TLIE.. WWW

@TLIE_ /TLIE0omcebook.acf

  

3329
GORTLIE.

1/TLIE0

TLIEmployeesTLIE eesymplo ees



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


